
PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 

Board of Trustees’ Video Conferencing Meeting 

Tuesday, May 25, 2021 – 12:30 p.m. 

Via Video Conferencing - Zoom & YouTube 

Public Defender Service Corporation  

A  G  E  N  D A 

 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Roll Call 

 

III. Proof of Due Notice of Meeting: 

 

A. Notice: 5 Working Days, Guam Daily Post Tuesday, May 18, 2021 

B. Notice: 48 Hours, Guam Daily Post  Friday, May 21, 2021 

 

IV. Determination of Quorum 

 

V. Approval of Minutes: Regular Scheduled Meeting of April 27, 2021 

 
VI. Old Business: 

A. Financial Status Update (PDSC, APD and DVP) Allotment Releases 
B. Report from PDSC Executive Director 

C. Report from APD Managing Attorney 

D. Public Health Legal Assistance Services for Seniors Program – Elder Justice 

Center Update 

E. BJA’s Sixth Amendment Initiative: Strengthening the Constitutional Protections 

of the Accused (For Discussion at the June 22, 2021 BOT Meeting at 10:00AM) 

 
VII. New Business: 

A.   

 

VIII. Executive Session: 

A.  Personnel Issues 

 

IX. Public Discussion 

 

X. Adjournment and Next Meeting Date: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 at 10:00 A.M. 

in the PDSC Conference Room. 

1 of 20



9

GUAM
 DAILY POST • TUESDAY, M

AY 18, 2021

Nine employees of the Guam Hous-
ing and Urban Renewal Authority 
have completed the Guam Regis-
tered Apprenticeship Program at 
Guam Community College, improving 
and expanding their skill sets in the 
process.

They graduated last week during 
a ceremony at the Sinajana Mayor's 
Office.

Seven of the employees completed 
the office manager services program 
and two completed the building main-
tenance and repairer program. 

With the graduation, the total 
number of GHURA employees who 

have completed the program is up to 
27 - 14 in the building maintenance 
repairer program, 12 in the officer 
manager services program and one in 
the electrical program.

"I am so proud of my nine appren-
tices who committed many hours 
of their personal time to obtain this 
nationally recognized certification. It 
is not easy to have a full-time job at 
GHURA, in most cases raise a family, 
and then take courses during your 
personal time with the goal of doing 
better in your respective professional 
capacities," GHURA Executive Direc-
tor Ray Topasna stated in a release.

"In most instances, it takes 2 years to 
complete the apprenticeship program. 
This type of commitment is indicative 
of the work culture here at the housing 
authority. I want to personally thank 
my team for their dedication but just 
as important the families for allowing 
their loved ones to go to school with 
the hope of a better future," he added.  

(Daily Post Staff)

LOCAL Psst! Hafa? You’re in the Local section of the Post – the news that concerns you the most. Do you have a news tip? Feel free to email editor@postguam.com. 

By Jolene Toves
jolene@postguam.com

Twenty-one recent high school 
graduates have completed the Guam 
Community College’s Future Builders 
Boot Camp and are on their way to 
new jobs.

The college held a ceremony at the 
Mangilao campus on Monday to cele-
brate the participants' success in the 
12-week program. 

Among the graduates was Mathew 
Flynn, who said participating in the 
program helped squash any doubt 
that a construction job was worth 
pursuing.

“When I thought about the work 
environment, I thought about it for so 
long. I thought it was worth a try to find 
out, not knowing what the outcome 
would be. From then on, I was inter-
ested in learning about the program,” 
said Flynn.

Flynn has secured a job with Black 
Construction and encourages others 
to give the program a try.

“I would definitely recommend 
others to try out the program for them-

selves and see what the construction 
field is all about,” said Flynn.

Pilar Williams, GCC dean for Trade 
and Professional Services, gave the 
opening remarks on behalf of GCC 
President Mary Okada, who was not 
able to attend the ceremony due to a 
budget hearing at the Legislature.

Williams read the president’s 
prepared speech which asked them 
to reflect on the program.

“In the midst of all the graduation 
ceremonies happening around our 
island, your completion is symbolic 
of the transition to the world of work. 
For some, it might be a new career; for 
others, the entry point to an exciting 
adventure. Nonetheless, it’s now time 
to make the commitment to be the 
best at what you do,” read Williams.

The Future Builders of Guam 
Construction Boot Camp is geared 
towards recent high school graduates 
focusing on the following disciplines: 
Carpentry, Welding, Electrical, Basic 
Blue Print Reading, Heating, Ventila-
tion & Air Conditioning (HVAC).

Participants in the program earn 
nationally recognized certifications 

in the areas listed above. In addition, 
participants will be able to earn a 
National Career Readiness Certifica-
tion (NCRC), OSHA-10 Certificate, 
and CPR/Basic First Aid.

“The need for skilled workers on 
our island continues to increase with 
the expansion of our construction 
industry and all the opportunities 
for economic growth for our sustain-
able future. I encourage all of you to 
guide someone you know, a friend or 
a family member, to take advantage of 
the training programs that the college 
is working on to support our commu-
nity,” read Williams.

Bridging the gap between students, 
education, training, and employers 
to create a sustainable workforce for 
our island, Okada encouraged the 
students to always bring their A game.

“Don’t stop learning and prepare 
yourself for that next step to advance. 

Always remember to bring your A 
game to work: appreciation, atten-
dance, appearance, ambition, accep-
tance, accountability, and most 
important, your attitude. Every day is 
game day. Folks are counting on you,” 
read Williams.

Gov. Lou Leon Guerrero congrat-
ulated the graduates who saw an 
opportunity despite the pandemic and 
seized it.

“While we celebrate you and the 
promising futures set before you. 
Know that each of each of you are part 
of something bigger,” said the gover-
nor, who referenced the need to grow 
the local construction workforce and 
rebuild the island's flagging economy. 

“As we navigate a post-pandemic 
world, we have an opportunity to build 
up what I think is our most valuable 
and precious resource, our commu-
nity sources, you." 

BUILDING THE ISLAND: The Guam Community College Future Builders of Guam Construc-
tion Boot Camp held a ceremony at the schools Multi-purpose Auditorium Monday morning. 
A total of 21 students completed the camp. Kevin Milan/The Guam Daily Post 

9 GHURA employees graduate from apprenticeship program

21 students complete 
GCC's 2nd Future Builders 
Construction Boot Camp

“This type of  
commitment is 

indicative of the work 
culture here at the 
housing authority.”

– GHURA Executive Director Ray Topasna

2 of 20



18

GU
AM

 D
AI

LY
 P

OS
T 

• 
FR

ID
AY

, M
AY

 2
1,

 2
02

1

Colombia protests 
stretch into 4th 
week, demonstrators 
vow to carry on

By Nelson Bocanegra
Reuters

Colombia's wave of anti-govern-
ment protests entered their fourth 
week on Wednesday, as unions, 
student groups and others turned out 
at marches to demand social change 
amid intermittent talks between the 
government and strike organizers.

The protests have been marked 
by violence by both police and civil-
ians. The attorney general's office 

has confirmed 15 deaths connected 
to protests, while one human rights 
group tallies more than 40.

President Ivan Duque earlier this 

week ordered the clearance of road 
blockades around the country, which 
have caused shortages of food and 
gasoline.

The demonstrations, originally 
called in late April against a now-can-
celed tax plan, have expanded to 
include demands like a basic income, 
an end to police violence and opportu-
nities for young people.

A health reform also opposed by 
many protesters, which they had 
criticized as too vague to make 
real change to Colombia's fragile 
health care system, was shelved by 
a joint congressional committee on 
Wednesday.

Some 8,000 people attended 
protests in capital Bogota, the mayor's 
office estimated. It added in a state-
ment that all demonstrations were 
peaceful, but urged people to begin 

journeys home by 4 p.m.
A few hundred gathered in Bogota's 

Bolivar Plaza.
"We're accompanying our young 

people, our children, our grandchil-
dren, who still lack opportunities 
despite our fighting for so long," said 
lawyer Roberto Hermida, 68. 

Hermida said he wanted there to be 
more educational opportunities and 
better health care.

Ati Quigua, 40, an Arhuaco indige-
nous leader, said she was protesting 
murders of human rights activists with 
50 members of her community, saying 
they were on an "indefinite strike."

The national strike committee, made 
up of major unions, student groups and 
others, has held several discussions 
with government representatives about 
protesters' demands, but the two sides 
are not yet holding formal talks.

BOGOTA: Demonstrators take part in a 
protest demanding government action to 
tackle poverty, police violence and inequal-
ities in health care and education systems, 
in Bogota, Colombia, on Wednesday. 

Luisa Gonzalez/Reuters

WORLD “All the world’s a stage, and all the men and women merely players.” – Jaques. Keep up with nonfictional world players and events in this section. Send us your thoughts to editor@postguam.com.

REQUEST FOR HEALTH PROPOSALS (RFHP)
NO. 21-01

The Judiciary of Guam is accepting proposals from qualified firms to provide 
Group Medical and Dental Insurance for the Judiciary of Guam.

Interested and qualified firms may request for printed or electronic copy of the 
RFHP at the Procurement Office located in Guam Judicial Center, 1st Floor, 120 

Friday, May 7, 2021 from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday thru Friday, except Government of Guam 
holidays.  

no later than 2:00 
pm, June 17, 2021 (Guam Standard Time). Late proposals will not be 
considered.

http://guamcourts.org. For more information, please contact the Procurement 
Office at (671)475-3393/3175/3290 or email at jpcepeda@guamcourts.org 
and/or mantonio@guamcourts.org.

/s/ KRISTINA L. BAIRD
Administrator of the Courts

“The Judiciary of Guam is an equal opportunity provider and employer.”

Judiciary of guam
Guam Judicial Center

120 West O’Brien Drive, Hagåtña, Guam 96910
www.guamcourts.org

C
O

U

R T S  O F  J U S T
I C

E

IS
L

A

ND  O F  GU
A

M

By Philip Blenkinsop
Reuters

European Union countries agreed 
on Wednesday to ease COVID-19 
travel restrictions on non-EU visitors 
ahead of the summer tourist season, 
a move that could open the bloc's 
door to all Britons and to vaccinated 
Americans.

Ambassadors from the 27 EU 
countries approved a European 
Commission proposal from May 3 

to loosen the criteria to determine 
"safe" countries and to let in fully 
vaccinated tourists from elsewhere, 
EU sources said.

They are expected to set a new list 
this week or early next week. Based 
on data from the European Centre for 
Disease Control and Prevention, Brit-
ain and a number of other countries 
would meet the new criteria.

The United States would not, 
although Americans with proof of 
vaccination would be welcomed.

One EU diplomat said cases of the 
Indian variant in Britain would need to 
be taken into account, although indi-
vidual EU countries are already setting 
their own policies. Portugal lifted a 
four-month travel ban on British tour-
ists on Monday.

Under current restrictions, people 
from only seven countries, including 
Australia, Israel and Singapore, can 
enter the EU on holiday, regardless of 
whether they have been vaccinated.

Individual countries can and will 

still be able to choose to demand a 
negative COVID-19 test or a period of 
quarantine.

The current main criterion is that 
there should be no more than 25 new 
COVID-19 cases per 100,000 people 
in the previous 14 days. The trend 
should be stable or decreasing and 
there should be a sufficient number 
of tests, which would need to show 
a minimum percentage of negative 
tests. Variants of concern can be taken 
into account.

EU to open doors to vaccinated foreigners

3 of 20



PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 
Board of Trustees’ Video Conferencing Meeting 

Tuesday, April 27, 2021 – 12:30 PM 
Via Video Conferencing - Zoom 

Public Defender Service Corporation Conference Room 
 

MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 12:31 p.m. on April 27, 2021 by the Chairman Chief 
Justice F. Philip Carbullido.  

 
II.  ROLL CALL 

Present: Chief Justice F. Philip Carbullido, Chairman, calling in from Guam 
Judicial Center 

    Attorney Cynthia V. Ecube, Member, calling in from Hagåtña 
    Trustee Donna M. Quiñata, Member, calling in from Hagåtña 
    Attorney Jacque T. Terlaje, GBA President, calling in from Hagåtña 
 

Others Present: Stephen P. Hattori, Executive Director  
   John P. Morrison, Deputy Director 

AnaMaria Gayle, APD Managing Attorney 
   Cathyann Gogue, Administrative Director 
   Michael Moreno, Chief Fiscal Officer 

Cathleen L.G. Moylan, Program Coordinator IV 
   Julito Tingson, MIS Administrator 
   Audre Hattori, APD Management Officer 
   Charlene San Nicolas, DPHSS 
   Evelyn Manibusan, DPHSS 
   Kathy F. Siguenza, EJC Managing Attorney 
   Jeanenne P. Cordero, Special Projects Coordinator 
   StaceyAnn F. Cruz, EJC Secretary Supervisor  
 
Excused:  Presiding Judge Alberto C. Lamorena, III, Vice Chairman 
 

 
III. PROOF OF DUE NOTICE OF MEETINGS 
 

“Notice of Public Meeting” was published in the Guam Daily Post on Tuesday, May 18, 
2021 and Friday, May 21, 2021.  

 
IV. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

With the presence of four (4) board members, a quorum was determined for the meeting to 
proceed. 
 
 
 

4 of 20



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Chief Justice Carbullido stated the board will proceed with the approval of the minutes of 
the regular board meeting of March 23, 2021.   
Motion to adopt the minutes subject to correction was made by Trustee Quinata and 
seconded by Trustee Ecube. Approved by acclamation. 

  
V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. FINANCIAL STATUS UPDATE (PDSC, APD, and DVP) Allotment Releases 
 

CFO Moreno reported that PDSC and APD have received their second allotments 
for April on the 16th and both are running at 92%, respectively.  
 
DVP – PDSC is currently still using STOP 2019 funding which will carry through 
June, 2021. STOP 2020 is a work in progress and they continue to communicate 
with the Governor’s office to formalize this funding. 
 
 

B.  REPORT FROM PDSC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

ED Hattori reported that PDSC currently has over 1,180 prejudgment cases. As 
shown in the data, PDSC opened 267 cases in FY2019, 564 in FY2020 and 349 
currently in FY2021. He went on to explain that the graph provided also indicates 
how many cases were asserted and how many clients waived their right to speedy 
trial-and when they selected to do so (while confined, released, etc.). ED Hattori 
mentioned that they may need to reconcile the data because of the gap between the 
total of prejudgment cases and the total of asserted and waived cases. He also 
assured the board that the disparity between asserted-confined and waived cases 
exists mainly because of clients who fall under the category of mental illness. He 
also noted that PDSC does not currently have a backlog of asserted cases relative 
to the number of waivers. Lastly, under the Executive Director’s Report, ED Hattori 
stated that he was aware that there may be an opportunity for certain jurisdictions 
to secure funding from the American Rescue Plan (APR) to hire legal counsel to 
address any backlog in cases, but that PDSC needed to do further research.  
 
Chief Justice Carbullido asked ED Hattori where he learned this information to 
which ED Hattori responded that it was a particular state who was able to convince 
their governor to allocate a portion of the funds for indigent defense. Chief Justice 
Carbullido then instructed ED Hattori to take the initiative with the approval of the 
board to research the ARP Treasury guidelines to see if PDSC would qualify for 
such funding. If the language suggests that the funding can be used to address 
indigent defense backlog, Chief Justice Carbullido suggested that PDSC prepare a 
request justifying their eligibility. 
 
Continuing his report, ED Hattori also shared that PDSC was approved for a grant 
that allows Zoom enabled devices to be installed at the local correctional facilities. 
These devices would facilitate attorney client visits. Since the grant provided funds 
in excess of what was originally requested, ED Hattori mentioned that they will be 

5 of 20



working with the Governor’s office and the Department of Corrections to see if the 
visits could expand to include family video visitation. He also stated that PDSC 
continues to work on the PayTel cost issue with DOC and the office hopes to appeal 
to the Legislature to set aside the 15% paid to the general fund by the owners of 
PayTel, to instead have it allocated to DOC to offset attorney client phone calls.  
 

 
C.  REPORT FROM APD MANAGING ATTORNEY 
 

MA Gayle began by sharing the number of cases that APD has closed out since 
FY2018. In FY2018, they closed 560 cases, 266 in FY2019, 114 in FY2020 and as 
of the second quarter of FY2021, they have processed and closed 14 cases. She also 
shared that they did include the number of asserted cases but did not create a 
separate category of the specific type of cases which were either being asserted or 
waived. Chief Justice Carbullido asked that going forward the data be revised to 
include the number of new cases that come in during the time cases are being 
closed, so that the board can better determine if a backlog exists. He also asked MA 
Gayle to add a confined and released category to which MA Gayle acknowledged.  

  
D. PUBLIC HEALTH LEGAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES FOR SENIORS 

PROGRAM – ELDER JUSTICE CENTER 
 
 Chief Justice Carbullido recognized MA Kathy Siguenza. She reported that with 

the unanimous passing of Bill 100-36 COR, the Public Defender Service 
Corporation has received authorization to apply, receive and administer grants, as 
well as to enter into intergovernmental agreements which will help facilitate a more 
permanent Elder Justice Center. MA Siguenza shared that the bill was introduced 
on March 29, 2021 and was referred to the committee on April 1st. A public hearing 
was held on April 9 and it was brought to the session floor on April 23rd with no 
objections. She reiterated that the passing of this bill was essential for the long-term 
success of the EJC and was enthusiastic about the ability to provide legal services 
for those who are in the greatest economic and social need.  

  
 Chief Justice Carbullido asked specifically which entity would be applying for 

federal grants to which MA Siguenza confirmed the Public Defender Service 
Corporation. He also brought up the fact that the eligibility for services seemed 
quite narrow and MA Siguenza agreed and assured the board that it was something 
they would like to further discuss at another meeting as they would need to research 
and analyze federal statutes. Chief Justice Carbullido mentioned that it need not be 
a pressing issue as the board has yet to determine whether the EJC is going to be a 
permanent entity within the PD’s office; however, he advised that there will be a 
more opportune time to resolve the eligibility issue once we get closer to the 
expiration of the pilot program.  

 
 MA Siguenza continued and shared that the grand opening for the Elder Justice 

Center will take place on May 3, 2021 at 10:30am in conjunction with the 
proclamation signing celebrating Senior Citizen’s Month. She mentioned that the 
Governor’s office had graciously agreed to combine the two ceremonies and has 
volunteered to handle most of the logistics for that day. Following COVID-19 

6 of 20



guidelines, the event will host no more than 25 guests and they will comprise of 
officials from DPHSS, PDSC Board of Trustees, the 36th Guam Legislature, 
Mayor’s Council and the media. MA Siguenza then asked PC Moylan to provide 
some statistics. 

 
 PC Moylan reported that for March 15 – 31st, they have received 13 requests for 

power of attorney, 12 for last wills and testaments, 12 living wills and 3 legal 
guardianships. They have also been handling inquiries for deed of gifts, war claims 
and protection orders. The EJC has been sorting through these requests and have 
also been referring clients to the Guam Bar Association, The Office of the Public 
Guardian and the Public Defender’s Victim Services Program. PC Moylan stated 
that during the month of April, they continue to tackle to original waitlist from 
DSC. The list contained 241 potential clients and as of this month they have been 
able to assist 19 seniors with 40 legal services. Although the numbers may not show 
it, PC Moylan assured the board that the bulk of the work has been in the effort to 
contact the clients, speak to family members, coordinate appointments and work 
through DSC’s case management system. She also mentioned that they have had to 
create an additional waitlist to better organize case priority. That waitlist is 
currently at 95. She then went on to report that the EJC had held two workshops 
with the Guam Micronesia Geriatrics Workforce Enhancement Program. 
Additionally, they have also participated in Dementia Awareness Conference 
Series, Public Health Awareness Week proclamation signing and several other 
events in support of senior citizens. Chief Justice Carbullido then asked for a 
motion to adopt Resolution PDSC-06-21 in reference to the Elder Justice 
Center ribbon cutting ceremony. Trustee Ecube motioned to adopt the 
resolution. The motion was seconded by Trustee Quinata and was 
unanimously approved by acclamation. 

 
 

E.   BJA’s SIXTH AMENDMENT INITIATIVE: STRENGHTENING THE 
CONSTITUTIONAL PROTECTIONS OF THE ACUSED  

 
 Chief Justice Carbullido moved for an update on the BJA initiative. AD Gogue 

mentioned that because the May BOT meeting could not be rescheduled to 
accommodate the Technical Assistant (TA) from the east coast, she asked that the 
June meeting be moved up to 10AM so that the TA could attend and provide insight 
to the board relative to the work they did for the Guam site. There was no objection 
from the attending members to move the meeting from 12:30PM to 10:00AM.  

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS: 
  

A. Financial Adjustment Request for Computers/Laptops Encumbered in FY2020 
 
MA Gayle stated that she provided documentation to support her request from the 
last meeting regarding items encumbered in FY2020 which were not expensed 
officially until FY2021 due to COVID-19 restrictions. She asked the board to 
approve the use of lapse funds to cover the $24,276. Chief Justice Carbullido 
advised MA Gayle to use APD’s cumulative lapse funds to which CFO Moreno 

7 of 20



asked for further clarification. CFO Moreno stated that the issue is occurring within 
this financial reporting year. Because APD requested to have the expense shown in 
FY2020, it would disrupt and alter the audit already in process with DOA. Chief 
Justice Carbullido then advised MA Gayle to work with PDSC and CFO Moreno 
to document the expense however feasible but also reiterated that it’d be better to 
allocate any lapse funds now rather than wait till the end of FY2021. MA Gayle 
and CFO Moreno acknowledged. Chief Justice Carbullido then moved for a 
motion to adopt Resolution PDSC-07-21 regarding the use of lapse funds for 
APD’s computer upgrades. Trustee Quinata motioned to adopt while Trustee 
Ecube seconded the motion. Attorney Terlaje made it known that she was 
abstaining from voting as she maintained a conflict with the vendor. PDSC-
07-21 was adopted and approved by acclamation.

VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chief Justice Carbullido asked that the executive session be tabled to the May meeting due
to time contraints and additional material they received from administrative staff. There
were no objections.

VIII. PUBLIC DISCUSSION

None.

IX. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE:

With no further matters to discuss, motion was made by Trustee Quinata and seconded
by Trustee Ecube to adjourn the meeting. Approved by acclamation.

The next BOT meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, May 25, 2021, at 12:30 p.m. in the PDSC 
conference room.  

Respectfully submitted, 

CATHY GOGUE 
Board Secretary 

/s/

8 of 20



Public Defender Service Corporation 
Case Status Comparatives 

FY2019 to FY2021* 

*Note: The FY2021 numbers are for 6 months of the fiscal year.

FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21

Criminal Felony 601 560 215 494 319 174 130 270 159 196 79 6

Criminal Misdemeanor 545 506 160 709 410 200 87 204 105 165 151 24

Civil Case 2 8 1 1 5 1 0 0 0 1 4 0

Criminal Appeals 7 2 0 6 1 0 3 2 0 0 0 0

Civil Appeals 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

Juvenile Cases 248 159 92 267 142 80 22 44 47 51 41 15

Protective Orders 46 46 33 36 13 10 18 23 19 7 10 10

Probate/War Claims 0 15 13 0 2 3 0 11 11 0 1 0

Special Proceedings 18 17 9 15 10 5 5 8 7 0 1 0

Consultation 8 2 0 7 3 4 2 2 0 1 0 0

Totals 1475 1315 524 1540 905 477 267 564 349 421 287 55

OPENED CLOSED PRE POST
Type of Case

9 of 20



10 of 20



Speedy Trial Status AAS AL3 ARB DAG EMI JRQ MJB MTC VPP Grand Total

Asserted-CONFINED 1 3 5 1 1 9 4 24

Asserted-Released 1 2 1 1 3 3 11

Waived 60 46 31 19 2 19 5 72 164 418

Waived-confined 5 4 1 2 1 3 5 5 26

Grand Total 67 53 39 23 3 24 5 89 176 479

11 of 20



04-21-21 Public Defender Service Corporation Page 1
3:48p

Attorney: Asserted Cases
PRE-TRIAL Cases Only

Opened Status Court CaseNum Case Type Attorney Tstatus

* ALM
08-06-18 PRE VPP CM349-18 Criminal Misdemeanor Alisha L. Molyneux Asserted-Released
02-10-20 PRE-BW VPP CM63-20 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Alisha L. Molyneux Asserted-CONFINED
06-15-20 PRE-BW VPP CM223-20 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Alisha L. Molyneux Asserted-Released
08-24-20 PRE VPP CF462-20 Criminal Felony - Family Violence Alisha L. Molyneux Asserted-CONFINED
11-18-20 PRE VPP CM482-20 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Alisha L. Molyneux Asserted-CONFINED
04-05-21 PRE VPP CF173-21 Criminal Felony: Stalking Alisha L. Molyneux Asserted-CONFINED

* ANN
02-13-14 PRE-BW MJB CM145-14 Criminal Misdemeanor Ali N. Nusbaum Asserted-Released
02-15-16 PRE-BW VPP CM116-16 Criminal Misdemeanor Ali N. Nusbaum Asserted-Released

* BEK
10-29-19 PRE ARB CF573-19 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) Brian E. Kegerreis Asserted-CONFINED
12-31-19 PRE AL3 CF713-19 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) Brian E. Kegerreis Asserted-CONFINED
07-22-20 PRE ARB CM293-20 Criminal Misdemeanor General Jurisdiction Brian E. Kegerreis Asserted-Released
03-15-21 PRE ARB CM488-20 Criminal Misdemeanor General Jurisdiction Brian E. Kegerreis Asserted-Released

* BPE
02-11-21 PRE MTC CF73-21 Adult Drug Court - Felony Case Brian Eggleston Asserted-CONFINED

* DJH
01-14-20 PRE-BW MJB CM23-20 Criminal Misdemeanor David J. Highsmith Asserted-Released
03-13-20 PRE DAG CM85-20 Criminal Misdemeanor General Jurisdiction David J. Highsmith Asserted-Released
05-13-20 PRE DAG CF248-20 Criminial Felony - CSC David J. Highsmith Asserted-CONFINED

* JMR
05-22-15 PRE-BW AL3 CM291-15 Criminal Misdemeanor Jocelyn M. Roden Asserted-Released
04-25-19 PRE-BW AL3 CM171-19 Criminal Misdemeanor Jocelyn M. Roden Asserted-Released

* JPM
03-06-20 PRE AAS CF150-20 Criminal Felony - Burglary John P. Morrison Asserted-Released
03-16-20 PRE AAS CF176-20 Criminial Felony - CSC John P. Morrison Asserted-CONFINED
09-22-20 PRE JRQ CF504-20 Adult Drug Court - Felony Case John P. Morrison Asserted-Released
10-20-20 PRE MTC CF59-05 Criminal Felony - Assult John P. Morrison Asserted-CONFINED
11-24-20 PRE JRQ CF596-20 Adult Drug Court - Felony Case John P. Morrison Asserted-CONFINED
03-24-21 PRE VPP CF208-08 Adult Drug Court - Felony Case John P. Morrison Asserted-CONFINED

* KBB
02-26-20 PRE VPP CF129-20 Criminal Felony - Family Violence Kristine B. Borja Asserted-Released
08-12-20 PRE VPP CM350-20 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Kristine B. Borja Asserted-Released

* LGL
10-17-06 PRE-BW SCOG CM886-06 Criminal Misdemeanor INACTIVE - Loretta Gutierrez-Long- Asserted-CONFINED

INACTIVE

* MGF
09-23-09 PRE-BW AAS CM1009-07 Criminal Misdemeanor INACTIVE - Maria G. Fitzpatrick- Asserted-Released

INACTIVE

* PJS
04-14-20 PRE ARB CF204-20 Criminal Felony - Terrorizing Peter J. Sablan Asserted-CONFINED
07-02-20 PRE MTC CM258-20 Criminal Misdemeanor General Jurisdiction Peter J. Sablan Asserted-CONFINED
02-24-21 PRE MTC CM41-21 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Peter J. Sablan Asserted-CONFINED

* PMA
01-13-10 PRE-BW AAS CM957-09 Criminal Misdemeanor INACTIVE - Pablo M. Aglubat Asserted-Released

* RSD
10-09-17 PRE-BW VPP CF580-17 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) INACTIVE - Richard S. Dirkx Asserted-Released12 of 20



04-21-21 Public Defender Service Corporation Page 2
3:48p

Attorney: Asserted Cases
PRE-TRIAL Cases Only

Opened Status Court CaseNum Case Type Attorney Tstatus

* SPH
11-09-18 PRE AL3 CF446-18 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) Stephen P. Hattori Asserted-CONFINED

* WBJ
03-22-21 PRE AL3 CF152-21 Criminal Felony - Family Violence William B. Jones Asserted-CONFINED

* WCB
04-06-18 PRE MTC CF210-18 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) William C Bischoff Asserted-CONFINED

* ZCT
07-19-19 PRE ARB CM305-19 Criminal Misdemeanor Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
08-15-19 PRE ARB CF452-19 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
12-17-19 PRE ARB CF681-19 Criminal Felony (Do Not Use) Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
09-30-20 PRE MTC CM412-20 Criminal Misdemeanor General Jurisdiction Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-Released
10-29-20 PRE MTC CF466-19 Criminal Felony - Theft Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-Released
12-02-20 PRE MTC CF602-20 Criminal Felony - Family Violence Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
02-17-21 PRE MTC CM32-21 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
03-25-21 PRE MTC CF159-21 Criminal Felony - Robbery Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
03-29-21 PRE MTC CM69-21 Family Violence - Misdemeanor Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED
04-01-21 PRE MTC CF119-21 Criminial Felony - Home Invasion Zachary C. Taimanglo Asserted-CONFINED

Number of Matters:  46

13 of 20



BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 

RELATIVE TO THE APPROVAL AUTHORIZING  

RIBBON CUTTING CEREMONY FOR THE 

ELDER JUSTICE CENTER   

 

RESOLUTION NO.  PDSC 06-21 

 
WHEREAS, on July 28, 2020, the Board of Trustees adopted Resolution No. 06-20 wherein 

the Public Defender Service Corporation was authorized to operate a pilot 
program known as the Elder Justice Center (EJC) to operate six months in 
duration from the adoption of said resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 27, 2020, this body passed Resolution No. 07-20 amending 

Resolution No. 06-20 to six (6) months from the full execution of the MOU and 
the official opening of the EJC; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 15, 2021 the EJC officially began services, with a soft opening, at the 

Castle Mall in Mangilao; and  
 
WHEREAS, May 2021 is Senior Citizens’ Month, the honored tradition that celebrates our 

Elders with events coordinated by the Department of Public Health & Social 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Defender Service Corporation would like to hold an official opening 

of the Elder Justice Center to coincide with the Governor of Guam’s  
proclamation signing declaring May as Senior Citizens’ Month slated for May 3, 
2021; and 

 

RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees of the Public Defender Service Corporation, will hold 
its ribbon cutting ceremony in partnership with the Department of Public Health 
& Social Services for the grand opening of the Elder Justice Center, subject to 
any restrictions placed on the event by the Office of the Governor of Guam. 

 
DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED THIS 27th day of April, 2021. 

 

 

 
Chief Justice F. PHILIP CARBULLIDO 
Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 

  CATHY C. GOGUE 
  Secretary 

14 of 20



BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 

RELATIVE TO THE USE OF LAPSED FUNDS  

FOR COMPUTER UPGRADES MADE BY THE 

ALTERNATE PUBLIC DEFENDER 

RESOLUTION NO.  PDSC 07-21 

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

RESOLVED, 

§11113.1 of 12 GCA authorizes the PDSC to retain unexpended appropriations
beginning with Fiscal Year 2000, and to carry these funds over into succeeding
fiscal years; and

the PDSC Board of Trustees adopted Resolution No. 99-07 requiring Board
approval for the budgeting and/or spending authorization(s) for these lapsed
funds; and

the office of the Alternate Public Defender (APD), a separate division of the
Public Defender Service Corporation (PDSC) was established through the
PDSC Board of Trustees Resolution No. 08-04; and

the APD procured ten (10) desktop and three (3) laptop computers in FY2020,
totaling Twenty-Four Thousand Two Hundred Seventy Six Dollars ($24,276.00)
that were not officially received until November 20, 2020 and paid in December
2, 2020; and

PDSC’s Fiscal Division had advised APD that lapse funds would need to be
authorized for the expenditure of such computers in FY2021; and now therefore
be it

the Board of Trustees of the Public Defender Service Corporation, in its
meeting of April 27, 2021, hereby approves the APD’s request for the 

expenditure of $24,276.00 of APD’s lapsed funds for the purpose of ten (10)
desktop and three (3) laptop computers purchased through Data Management
Resources.

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED THIS 27th day of April, 2021. 

Chief Justice F. PHILIP CARBULLIDO
Chairman

ATTEST:

CATHY C. GOGUE
Secretary

15 of 20



EXHIBIT A 

Old Business 

Agenda Item VI-D 

Elder Justice Center 

Update 

16 of 20



ELDER JUSTICE
CENTER

STATISTICS

17 of 20

Presenter
Presentation Notes
This is a summary of our statistics for the months of February through May.  This summary reflects the Inquiries received, the Cases Opened and Closed, and Outreach events.   The next slides provide the details to support these numbers. 



ELDER JUSTICE
CENTER

STATISTICS

18 of 20

Presenter
Presentation Notes
This slide shows the types of inquiries, requests via telephone calls and email correspondence for those who are not on the waitlist.



ELDER JUSTICE
CENTER

STATISTICS

19 of 20

Presenter
Presentation Notes
This Table reflects the Cases Opened  and Closed from Waitlist 1.  Waitlist 1 started with 241. From the waitlist, other seniors were added given emergencies/urgent matters.  Waitlist 2 is being managed by the Division of Senior Citizens. Waitlist  #2 is around 140 plus seniors.Go through chart…. ______________________________Miscellaneous Information:  Declined Services to Date (May 20):  53  Deceased to Date (May 20):  80 EJC’s April invoice amounted to $11,204.50.  Salaries:  $8,790.87Benefits:  $2,413.63Supplies:  $0.00The EJC started its services March 15. As of May 20, 2021 all seniors on waitlist number 1 have been called.  Services are being rendered at this time and a request for waitlist number 2 has been made.Intake appointments were scheduled and conducted telephonically.  The appointments varied in length from 1 hour to 2 hours, with additional time to process the intake documents, include entries into the GetCare case management system, and to make necessary referrals.   



ELDER JUSTICE
CENTER

STATISTICS

20 of 20

Presenter
Presentation Notes
This table, as shown earlier, reflects the outreach activities conducted by the EJC staff.  For the month of May, the EJC staff participated in the Proclamation Signing and Official Opening of the Elder Justice Center on Monday, May 3, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.  The team also participated in the Governor’s Annual Conference on Aging as the first presenters on Thursday, May 6, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. via Zoom.  We had about 40 plus participants.  The EJC team also participated in the following events:	May 13, 2021 10:00am COVID-19 related Health information 	May 20, 2021 10:00am Financial/Fraud information (Coast 360)  We also plan to coordinate additional outreach in the month of June to include The Guam Coalition Against Sexual Assault & Family Violence Webinar on Our Elders on June 3, 2021 via Zoom as well as Virtual Village Presentation on Tuesday, June 15, 2021.       


	BOT Meeting Packet_April 27, 2021.pdf
	PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION
	VI. Old Business:
	VII. New Business:
	VIII. Executive Session:

	PDSC Board Presentation_05 25 2021.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4




